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Moreton Bay™

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014 =
Nota $'000 £'000
Income
Revenue
Recurring Revenue
Rates and utility charges 3 250,521 238,873
Fees and charges 4 35619 32,301
Rental income 6,210 6,334
Grants, subsidies and contributions S(a) 22179 18,807
Interest revenue B 46,241 46,287
Sales revenue 4,049 4,088
Other revenue 7 21,435 18,302
Share of profit of associate 17 70,062 48,192
456,416 414,974
Capital Revenue
Grants, subsidies and contributions 5{b) 100,817 81,523
Total Revenua 557,233 496,497
Capital Incomea ] 3,276 353
Total Income E£50,509 498 850
Expenses
Recurring Expenses
Employes benefits g {124,271) {123,480)
Materials and services 10 {134,821) (130,755)
Depreciation and amortisation 11 (79,729) (B2,783)
Finance costs 12 (24,545 {24,588)
{363,366 {361,606)
Capital Expenses 13 (365,908) {30,334)
Total Expenses (729,274) {391,940)
MNET RESULT {168,765) 104,910
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to net resull
Decrease in asset revaluation surplus 29 (227.,549) (7.843)
Total other comprehensive income for the year (227,549) (7.843)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (DEFICIT)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR (396,314) 97,067

The above statement should be read in confuncion with the accompanying noles and Signicant Accouniing Policios.

* Refer o note 17 for information on adiusiments relating to invesimeni in assoclate.
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Moreton Bog™
STATEMENT CF FINANCIAL PCSITION
As at 30 June 2015
— ——=—==x — cem——=a = T 1 L
2015 2014 »
Note $'000 5000
Assets
Current Assats
Cash and cash equivalents 14 252,287 205,080
Trade and other receivables 15 48,257 54 578
Inventories 9886 819
Total Current Assats 301,530 260,577
Non-Current Assals
Trade and other receivables 15 721,726 695,839
Investments 15 15
Investment property 16 42,355 45,310
Investmenl in associate 17 932,057 888277
Property, plant and equipment 18 3,579,016 4,088,760
Intangible assets 20 2,638 3,147
Total Non-Current Assats 5,277.807 5,722,348
Total Assets 5,579,337 5,082,925
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 44,410 53,969
Borrowings 22 22,181 21,054
Provisions 23 15,058 14,522
Other 862 1,088
Tota! Current Liabilities 82,511 a0,633
Non-Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 605 784
Borrowings 22 372770 374,915
Provisions 23 22,623 19,451
Tetal Non-Current Liabilities 295,998 395,150
Total Liabilities 478,509 485,783
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS 5|100IBZH 5,497,142
Community Equity
Retained surplus 4,795,591 4,968,356
Assel revaluation surplus 24 301,237 528,786
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 5,1[)[!.32& 5.497,142

The above sfatemend should be raad in confurclion with the acoompanying noles and Significant Accounting Palicios
* Rafer to note 17 for information on adiustments relaling lo nvestmeant i associale.

2 QAO
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Moreton BaQ\L

For the year ended 30 June 2015

—=z ——= —— ———— — ——

Asset Total

H;um r::: Revaluation Community

P Surplus Equity

Note 24

$'000 $'000 $'000

Balance as at 1 July 2014 4,868,356 528,786 5497142

Net resuit (168,765) - (168,765)
Other comprehensive income for the year

Decrease in asset revaluation surplus - (227,549) (227,549)

Total comprehensive income for the year {168,765) {227,549) (388,314)

Balance at 30 June 2015 4,798,591 301,237 5,100,828

Balance as at 1 July 2013 4,863 446 536,629 5400075

Net resull 104,910 - 104,910
Other comprehensive income for the year

Decrease in assel revaluation surplus - {7,843) (7.843)

Total comprehensive income for the year 104,910 (7.843) 97,067

Balance at 30 June 2014 4,968,356 528,786 5,497,142

Thi above stalernent should be read i confunction with (he accompanying nofes and Significant Accourting Pokcigs.
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Moreton Bag‘ '

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
Mote $°000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 323,238 312,599
Payments to suppliers and employees (295,348 (282,232}
Interest received 46,258 49,181
Rental income 6,210 6,934
Mon capital granis and contributions 22,178 18,807
Tax equivalent received 17,564 4511
Borrowing cosls (23,200) (23,263)
MNet cash inflow from operating activities 30 97,220 86,537

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (150,219) (175,736)
Payments for intangible assets 38) (939)
Payments for investment property {217) {321)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 24,712 4,234
Met movement in loans to community organisations (115) {13)
Met movement in loans to Unitywater 4,704 4,396
Dividends received from associale 24,999 30,344
Grants, subsidies, confributions and donations 47,179 42 453
MNet cash outflow from investing activities (48,995) {95,582)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 20,000 31,000
Repayment of borrowings (21,018} {18,160)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (1.018) 12,840
Met increase in cash and cash equivalent held 47,207 3.795
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 205,080 201,285
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 14 252 287 205,080

The above stalement shawld be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noltes and Sigrificant Accounting Policies

QAD
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Moreton Bag™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1A

1.B

1.0

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These genaral purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 and have been
prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government
Reguiation 2012. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Slandards Board.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain classes
of property, plant and equipment and investmant property which are measured al fair value,

Recurring/capital ciassification

Revenue and expendiure are presented as “recurring” or “capital” in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on the following basis:

Capital revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are fled to specific projects for the
replacement or upgrade of existing non-current assets and/or investment in new assets. It also includes non-
cash confributions which are usually infragtructure assets received from developers,

The following transactions are classified as sither "Capital Income” or "Capital Expenses” depending on
whether they result in accounting gains or losses:
- disposal of non-current assels
- discount rate and estimation adjustments to restoration provisions
adjustments o infrastructure offsels provisions
revaluations of investment property and property, plant and equipment.

All other revenue and expenses have been classified as "recuming”.

Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and interpretations issued
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board that are relevant to Council's operations and effective for the
current reporting period. Because Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Ausliralian Accounting Standards
include requirements for not-for-profit enlities which are inconsistent with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), 1o the extent these inconsistencies are applied, these financial statements do not compty
with IFRS.

Tha main impacts are:

- the offsetting of revalualion and impairment gains and losses within a class of assets

- the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal grant revenue.

Constitution

Moreton Bay Regional Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Governmant Act 2009 and is
domiciled in Auslralia.

Date of authorisation

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General
for final signature.  This is the date the management cerificate is signed.

QAD
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Moreton Boy™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1.E Currency
Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency.

1.F  Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Inlerpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the
current reporting period. The adoption of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not
resulted in any material changes to Council's accounting policies.

Council has not applied any Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but
are nat yet effective with the exceplion of 2015-T7 Amendments lo Ausiralian Accounting Standards - Fair
Value Disclosures of Nol-for Profit Public Sector Entities . Council has decided to apply this standard
retrospectively as it exempls public sector entities from specific disclosure requirements required under
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement for assets within the scope of AASB 116 Propery, Plant and Equipment
that are held primarily for their current service potential rather than to generate future net cash inflows. The
disclosures exempted are concerned wilh quantitative information and sensitivity analysis conceming fair
value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,

Council generally applies standards and interpretations in accardance with their respective commencement
dates,

Al the date of authonization of the financial report, AASE 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2015-6
Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards - Extending Relaled Party Disclosures fo Not-for-Profit
Public Seclor Entilies are the new accounting standards with a fulure application date that is expected to
have a material impact on council's financial statements.

AASE 2015-6 Amendments fo Australian Accounling Standards - Exlending Related Parly Disclasures o
Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entitfes will become effective for reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 July
2016. Council has assessed the potential impact and identified additional infarmation that will need to be
disclosed in the 2016-17 financial statements.

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognilion and Maasurement , is affective for
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and must be applied retrospectively. The main
impact of AASE 9 is to change the requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures
associated with financial assets. Under the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets
stipulated in AASE 139 will be replaced with two measurement categones: fair value and amortised cost, and
financial assets will only be able o be measurad at amontised cost where very specific conditions are met.

Management have yet to fully assess the impact that AASE 9 Financial Instruments and 2010-7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9. Initial analysis suggests that AASB 9
will have no impact on the financial statements, however further analysis will be requirad closer to the
application date of the standard, Council does not expect to implement the amendments prior to he
adoption date of 1 January 2018,

Recently AASB 15 Revenue from Conlracts with Customers was released and Council is still reviewing the
way that revenue is measured and recognised to identify whether it will have a malerial impacl, To dale no
impact has been identified.

AAEB 15 is effective from 1 January 2018 and will repiace AASE 118 Revenue , AASE 111 Constructicn

Contracts and a number of Interpretations. It contains a comprenansive and robust framework for the
recognition, measuremeant and disclosure of ravenue from contracts wilh cusiomers.

QAD
certified statements



Moreton Bag™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1.6 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions aboul camrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associaled assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered o be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions {0 accounting estimates are recognised In the
period in which the estimale is revised and in fulure periods as relevant.

The estimates and assumptions that have the potential 1o cause a material adjustment 1o the carrying
amaunts of assets and labilites within the next financial year are outlined in the following financial statement
notes:

Investment Property - Note 1.0 and Mote 16

Valuation and depreciation of properly, plant and equipment - Note 1.P and Note 18

Impairment of non-current assets - Mote 1.5

Liabiliies - Note 1.V

Provisions - Note 1.X and Note 1.Y and Note 23

Caontingent liabilities - Note 26

1.H Rates, grants and other revenue

Rales, granls and other revenue are recognised as revenue on receipt of funds or earlier upon unconditional
enttlement to the funds.

Rates
Where rate maonies are received prior to the commencement of the rating period, the amount is recognised

as revenue in the period in which they are receivad, otherwise rates are recognised st the commencement of
the rating period.

Grants and subsidies
Granls and subsidies thal are non-reciprocal are recognised as revenue upon receipt. Where Council is
obligated to repay grant and subsidy income an expense is recognised once that obligation is known,

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nalure, revenue is recognised as the various performance
obligations under the funding arrangement are fulfilled.

Non-cash contributions
Nen-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds are recognised as revenue and
as non-curment assets. Mon-cash contributions balow the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses.

Physical assets contributed 1o Council by developers in the form of infrastructure are recognised as revenue
when the development becomes "on maintenance” (i.e. Council obtains control of the assels) and thera is
sufficient data in the form of drawings and plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of
such assets. All non-cash contributions are recognised at the fair value of the confribution on the date of
acquisition.

Infrastruct sh contribition

Council receives infrastruciure contributions from developers for trunk infrastructure, such as roads and
stormwaler, These infrastructure contributions are not within the scope of AASB interpretation 18 because
there is no performance obiigation associated with them. Consequently, the infrasiructure contributions are
recognised as income when received,

7
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Moreton Bay ™"

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1.

Rental income
Rental revenue from investment and ather property is recognised as income on a pariodic straight line basis
over the lease term.

Interest
Interest received is accrued over the term of the invesimant.

Share of profit

As a party to the participation agreement with Unitywater, Council receives a proportional share of net profits
as a participation returmn, Returns are calculated on the post-lax operating profits of Unitywater. Revenus is
recognised on an accruals basis.

Fees and charges
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entittement to the funds. Generally this is upon
lodgement of the relevant applications or documents or when the service is provided.

Income tax eguivabent
Unitywaler operates under an income tax equivalent regime; wilh all tax paid being distributed to the

participating Councils on a pro-rata basis o their participation rights. Council recognises revenue quarnerly
based on a percentage of the Unitywater gross revenue,

Financial assats and financial liabilities

Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Slatement of Financial Position when, and
orly when, Council becomes a party to the cantractual provisions of the instrument.

Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at reporting date as
follows:

Financial assais

Cash and cash equivalents - Note 1.J
Receivables - Note 1.K

Financial lizbilities

Payablas - Maote 1.1

Bomowings - Note 22

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not bean
applied.

All other discdosures relating 1o the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments are
included in Note 31.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but nol banked at year
end, deposits held al call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with originat
maturities of twehve months or less that are readily converible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bark overdrafts.

~ QAD
cenified statements
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Moreton Bag™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1.K

1L

1M

Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due al the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed
purchase price / contract price and subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effeclive interest
method, less allowance for impairment. Setllement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice
date.

The collactability of receivables is assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence that Council will
not be able o collect all amounts due, the carrying amount is reduced for impairment. The loss is
recognised in finance costs.

All known bad debts were written-off at year and. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off in
the same period are recognised as finance costs in the Stalement of Comprehensive Incomea, If an amount
Is recovered in a subsequent period it is recognised as revenue.

Because Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Govermment Act 2009 to sell an owner's
property to recover cutstanding rate debts, Council does not Impair any rate receivables,

Loans and advances are made to communily organisations, and are recognisad in the same way as other
raceivables. Security is not normaily obfained.

Works receivable as at the reporting date represents the value of financial contributions and costs incumred
by Council lass the value of any infrastructure 'handed' over to Council that has arisen out of the Maraton
Bay Rail Link Project. The Mareton Bay Rail Link Project is a jointly funded project between the Australian
Government, the Queensland Stale Government and Moreton Bay Regional Council to deliver 12.6 km of rail
track, & rail stations, other rail structures, new road and bridge warks along with new cycling and walking
paths. The rail line will link the surburbs from Petrie to Kippa Ring. Council pays financfal contributions
toward the project, which is managed by the Queenstand Department of Transpart and Main Roads, and in
return will progressively receive infrastructure for those contributions and other costs Council directly incurs
in the delivery of the project. Council will make further contributions toward the project in 201516, Council
anticipates that the total value of the financial contributions along with any other costs incurred will equate to
the value of infrastructure to be received by Council over the course of the project.

Inventories
Inventories hald for distribution are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where

applicable, direct matenal, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fived overheads. Costs
are assigned on the basis of weighted average cost.

Investments

Financial institution deposits at call and term deposits with a short maturity of twelve months or less are
treated as cash eguivalents. Interest and dividend revenues are recognised on an accrual basis.

Council holds shares in Redcliffa Peninsula Financial Services Ltd. The shares are valued at cost because
they ara not quoted in an active market and their fair value cannol be reliably measured.

QAQ
ceriified statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1M

1.0

1.P

Investment in associate

Council holds participation rights in Unitywater, a water distribution and retail business established in
accordance with the South-East Queensfand Water (Distribution and Retail Restructuring) Act 2003 to
deliver water and waste water services to cusiomers within the local government areas of Moreton Bay
Regional Councll and Sunshine Coast Regiona! Council, The participating Councils are Moreton Bay
Regional Council, Sunshine Coas! Regional Council and Noosa Shire Council,

The participation rghts effectively represent an investmant in an associate by Moraton Bay Regional Council
and are disclosed in Note 17,

Associates are entities over which Morelon Bay Regional Council exerts significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions but is not control or joint
control. Council has detarmined that Unitywater is an associate for accounting purposes,

Investments in associates are accounted for in the financial statements using the equity method and are
carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount. Under this method, the entity’s share of post-
acquisition profits or losses of associates is recognised in the Statement of Camprehensive Income and the
interest in the equity of the associate is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements, baing the share of profits less dividends received and accrued, are adjusted
against the cost of the investment,

Investment property

Investment property is property held for the primary purpose of earning rentals andfor capital appreciation.
This includes land held by Council for a currently undetermined fulure use,

Investment propery s maasured using the fair value model. This means ail investmeant property is initially
recognised at cost (including transaction costs) and then subsequently revalued annuatly at the reporting
date by a registered valuer, Where investment property is acquired at no or nominal cost it is recognised at
fair value,

Property thal is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is classified as
investiment property. Investment propery under construction is measured at fair value, unless fair value

cannot be reliably determined for an individual property {in which case the property concerned is measured
al cost until fair value can be reliably determined ).

Gains or lossas arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are recognised as incomes or
axpenses respectively for the period in which they arise. Investment property is not depreciated and is not
tested for impairment

Property, plant and equipment
Assel classes

The classes of property, plant and eguipment recognised by the Council are:

Land Transpert Infrastructure

Land Improvements Stormwater Infrastructure

Buildings Waterways and Canals Infrastructure
Park Equipment Cublural and Herftage

Plant and Equipment

10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

There will be occasions where assets are adjusted between various classes due to refinements in the above
definitions or misclassification of a particular asset. These movements will have a nil effect on the total
assets value for Council.

Mon asset thresholds

Items of property, plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000 except for land and network
assets are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment
ara capitalised.

Acguisition of assets
Acquisitions of assets are inilially recorded at cost. Cosl is determined as the fair value of the assets given

as consideration plus costs incidental o the acquisition, including detalled design casts and all other
establishment costs.

Non-monetary assets, including property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are
recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by Council valuation when the criteria for assel recognition
par AASB 1004 Conlributions are met and where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the
respective asset class. Fair value Is the price that would be recaived to sell the asset in an orderly
trarsaction betwean market parlicipants at the measurement date.

Capital and operating expenditure

Direct labour and material and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or
consiruction of assets are trealed as capital expenditure. Assets under construction are not depreciated until
they are completed and commissionad, at which time they are reclassified from work in progress to the
appropriate property, plant and equipmeant class.

Routine operating mainlenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity and
useful life of the non-current asset is expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of
a major component of an asset to maintaln its service potential is capitalised.

Valuation

Land, buildings, infrastructure assets and cullural and heritage asseis are measured on the revaluation
basis, al fair value, in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value
Measurament. All other non-current assets, principally plant and equipment and intangible asseats are
measured at cost.

MNon-current physical assels measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying
amount of each class of assets does not materially differ from its fair value al the reporting date. This is
achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for sach class
of property, plant and equipment assets at least once avery three to five years. This process involves the
valier physically sighting all Council assels where practical and making an independenl assossment of the
condition of the assets at the dale of inspection.

In tha intervening years, Council uses a suitable indax to perform a deskiop valuation. A deskiop revaluation
invalves the application of suitable indexes underaken at the reporting date when there has been a material
movement in value for an asset class subsequent to the last comprehensive revaluation,

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the
asset revaluation surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously
racognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense fo
the extent it exceeds tha balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus for that asset class.

11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 20 June 2015

During 2014115 the revaluation that was undertaken for the Transport asset class resulted in a significant
decrease in asset value, particularly for the asset sub classes of Pathways and Kerb and Channel. The
primary driver for this decrease was the significant drop in unit rates which are used to value the assets, Unit
rates are sourced from independent, professionally qualified valuers and are subject to several assumptions
which impact upon the valuation cutcome.

The large decrease in unit rates (in excess of 50%) for Pathways and Kerb and Channel prompted Council to
undertake a review of the previous unit rates provided in 201112 and the current unit rates provided in
201415 1o ensure fair value was appropriately reflectad.

Specifically Council focused on the fallowing for the review,

1. Consicdar any difference in valuation approach between the 2011/12 unit rates and the 2014/15 unit
rates thal may have given rise to the change in unit rates.

2. Undertake an analysis of specific work jobs performed during 2011/12 which specifically related to
kerb and pathways o establish a cost per measure that would be comparable 1o the unit rates provided
by the valuers in 201112

3. Considar external factors that may have contributed to the higher unit rates for 2011/12, i.e. economic
conditions or the impact of natural disasters.

4, Conduct an analysis of the 2014/15 unit rates compared against specific work jobs underiaken during
2014115 for kerbs and pathways,

5. Compara unit rates far kerb and pathways with other local governments and other organisations
where possible.

At the conclusion of the review the detailed analysis supported the substantial decrease in unit rates from
2011112 to 2014/15. Specifically the analysis demonsirated;

1. The valuation approach by the valuers in 201112 as compared to 2014/15 was comparable except
for minor differences in relation to on-cost assumptions and the assumed length of measure applicable
for some unit rates,

2. Analysis of specific work jobs during 2011712 and 2014715 1o arrive at a cost per measure
corresponded approxmately to the unit rates provided by the valuers,

3. Economic conditions and the impact of certain natural disasters in 2011 supported higher unit rates as
there was increased demand for resources and materials.

4. The unit rate comparison with another local govermnment identified the unil rates were within an
acceptable range of variation.

Despite the significant revaluation down that occurred for the Transpor asset class, Council is of the belief
that through the analysis underaken, the unit rates adopted for 2014715 appropriately reflect fair value,

Details of valuers and methods of valuations are disclosed in Nota 19,

12
QAD
cerlified siatemenls



" ——

Moreton Bay

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress contains all assels purchased andfor constructed that are not yet available for use.
The cost of property, plant and equipment under construction includes the cost of matenals and direct
labour. Indirect costs may also be included where such cosis can be reasonably associated with capital

construction projects.

Investment property under construction is classified as investment property. Refer to Note 1.0 for further
information.

Depraciation

Land and cultural and heritage assets are not depreciated as they have an unlimited useful life. Deprociation
on other property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to wrile-off the net cost or
revalued amount of each depreclable asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively overils
astimated useful life (o the Council. Management balieve thal the straight-line basis appropriately reflacts the
pattern of consumption of all Council assets.

Assets are deprecialed from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the
time an asset is completed and commissioned ready for use.

Where assets have separalely identifiable components thal are subject to regular replacement, these
components are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditura that
increases the originally assessed capacily or service polential of an asset is capitalised and the new
depreciable amount is depreciated avar the remaining useful life of the asset to the Council.

Maior spares purchased specifically for particular assets thal are above the assel recognition threshold are
cagitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the asset to which they relate.

The depreciable amount of improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the
estimated useful lives of the improvements to the Council or the unexpired perod of the lease, whichever is
the shorter.

Depreciation mathads, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipmen! assets
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the
pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management
intentions. Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are shown in Note 18.

During 2014/15 the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASE) clarified the definition of residual valuo
as defined in AASE 116 Properly, Plant and Equipment . The clarification effectively limited the definition of
residual value to circumstances where an entity expects o receive consideration for an asset at the end of
its useful life. Previously Council interpreted residual value to include circumstances where salvaged
materials from an existing asset were reused in the asset replacement process.

With the AASB clarifying the definition of residual value, Council has removed from its asset classes in
2014/15, residual values applicable o assels where salvaged malterials wera anficipated. The asset classes
of Land Improvements, Park Equipment, Stormwater, Transport and Waterways and Canals were affected.

It is estimated that removing residual values from the affected asset classes resulled in an approximate
increase in depreciation expense for 2014/15 in the amount of $5.7 miflion. Itis expected that increases in
depreciation expense will ba similar in future financial years.

Land under roads

Council does not control any land under roads. All land under the road netwark within the Council area that
has been dedicated and opened for public use under the Land Act 1994 or the Land Tithe Act 1994 is nol
cantrolled by Council but is controlied by the State pursuant o the relevant legislation. Therefore this land is

nat recognised in these financial statements.
QAOQ
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Assels not previously recognised

The initial recognition of non-current assets relates to items of property, plant and equipment that should
have been included in previous years financial accounts, but has only been identified and placed into the
fixed asset register during the current reporting period and not deemed material for the purposes of a prior
parind adjustmeant under the provisions of AASE 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors .

These assets do not form part of the current years capital acquisitions and have been recognised directly to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as capital revenue as shown in Nete 5(b). These assets wera
identified due to the introduction of improved information capture processes. All immaterial identified assets
have been initially recognised within the accounts at their written down fair value as at the reporting date
detailed,

Road slruclure assels
During 2014115 Council undertook a re-definition review of its road structure assets, The purpose of the re-
definition review was lo;

a) establish whether the specific road asset components were still suitable for asset recognition purposes,
b establishing a consistant rule base across the region for defining “road blocks™ and ensunng these blocks
correlate to road assets in the financial asset register, and,

c) ensuring that all corporate systems are utilising the same asset dataset, whether it be for asset
identification, location, accounting, maintenanca, operational or capital works activities, to enable betler
asset management outcomes,

Road structure assets are the following specific asset components; The road formation (earthwaorks), the
road base, the road sub base and the road surface (seal). Road structure assets are recorded as separate
assets in the Financial Asset Register. A “road block” is a segment of road with similar charactenstics (e.n.
material, width/ depth) which is broken into logical manageable extents. A road block from an asset
management perspective is regarded as the asset however in the financial asset register this would
represent those four asset componeants as described earlier,

The re-definition exercise resulted in the following outcomes.

a) That it was appropriate from an asset recognition perspective to record road structure assetis as formation,
basa, sub base and surface as each componant had a specific defined useful life

b) The re-defining of a road block to align Councils infarmation systems would require the existing road
structure assets recorded on the financial asset register to be removed and replaced with new road structure
assels arising out of the road re-definition exercise. For this to occur Counsil had o re-draw its entire road
network spatially and update road attribute data with information available on matenals and road reatments.

In total 72,051 road structura assets were removed from the financial asset register and replaced with
78,307, The increase in asset numbers iz not reflective of “new” assets found but rather a translation
process of previous assets to current ones, Underaking such a review not only increased the number of
physical assets recorded on the asset register but also impacted upon the financial value of the assets.
Praviously the written down value of Council's 72,051 road structure assets was in the amaount of
$1,189,160,937. The re-defined 78,307 road slruclure assels (which were re-valued as at 31 December
2014) have a written down value of 3979,253.670. The decrease in written down value of $209,907. 267 s a
capital expense included as part of the revaluation down of property, plant and equipment recorded atl Nole
13. The change in written down value of the rmad structure assets is regarded as a change in accounting
estimate in accordance with AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

14
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Mareton Bay ™~
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1.Q Intangible assets

Intangible assels are assets that do nol have a physical substance but are expacted to provide fulure
bencfits to Council. Intangible assets derive their value from the rights thal possession and use confer on
Council, Council recognises identifiable intangible assets, such as software.,

It has been determined that there is nol an active market for any of Council's intangible assets. As such,
these assels are recognised and carried at cost, less accumulaled amerlisation and accumulated impaimeant
losses. Intangible assels are amorised over a life of between five and ten years.

Intangible assets with a cost or other value exceeding $5,000 are recognised as intangible assets In the
financial statements, items with a lesser value being expensed.

Amartisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each raporting
penod and adjusted where appropriate. Details of the estimated useful lives assigned to each class of
intangible assets are shown in Nola 20.

1.R  Impairment of non-current assets

Each non-current physical and intangible assel and group of assels is assessed for indicators of impairment
annually. If an indicator of possible impairment exists, the Council determines the assel's recoverable
amount. Any amount by which the assel's camying amount exceeds the recoverable amount Is recorded as
an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cos!s te sell and
its valua in use,

An Impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless lhe assat
is carried at a revalued amount. When the assel is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is
offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class o tha extent available,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to tha
ravised estimate of ils recoverable amount, bul so that the increased carmying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an Impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is camied ata
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is reated as a revaluation surplus
increase.

1.5 Leases

Leases of plant and equipment under which Council as lessee assumes substantially all the risks and
bencfits incidental fo the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership, are classified as finance
leases, Other leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are classified as

operating leases.

Opergling leases
Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits

o be derived from the leased property.

15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1.7

1.U

Payablas

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the
agreed purchase/contract price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing
are unsecured and are generally settled on standard terms of 30 day following date of invoice.

Liabilities - ampicyea benefits

Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service
leave in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. Liabilities for employee
bencfits are assessed at each reporting dale and are classified as current excepl whare Council has an
unconditional right to defer settlement beyond twelve months, in which case the liability 's classified as non-
current.

Salaries and wages

A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at
current pay rates in respect of employees’ services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued
expense and is reparted in Mote 21 as a payable.

Annual leave

A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounis expected 1o be settled within 12 months are calculated on
current wage and salary levels and includes related employee on-costs. Amounts not expected 1o be settled
within 12 months are calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs,
and are discounted to present values. The liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note
21 as a payable. As Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of annual leave
beyond twelve months after the reporting date, all annual leave is classified as current.

Sick leave

Council has an abligation to pay sick leave an termination 1o certain employees and theraefore a liabilily has
been recogrised for this obligation. The liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Mote 21
as a current payable.

Superannuation

The superannualion expanse for the reponing period s the amount of the contribution the Council makes to
the superannuation plan which provides benefits to its employees. Details of those arrangements are set oul
in Mote 27,

Long service leave

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated fulure cash outflows to be
made in respact of services provided by employees up to he reparting date. The value of the liability is
calculated using current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates and includes related
employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in Council's
employment or other associated amployment which would result in Council being required to meet the
liability, Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefil eamed to date, and the result is
discounted to present value. Long service leave is Ireated as current where Council does not have an
unconditional right o defer settlement beyond twelve manths. All other long service leave s treated as non-
current. This liability is reporied in Mote 23 as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1.V Borrowings and borrowing costs

Bomowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attribulable transaction costs. Subsequent
lo initial recognition thesa liabiliies are measured at amortised cosl.

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 Council adopts an annual debt policy that seis
out Council's planned borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current palicy is to only borrow for capital
projects and for a term no longer than the expected life of the assel. Council also aims to comply with the
Queensland Treasury Corporation’s borrowing guidalines and ensure that sustainability indicators remain
within acceplable levels at all imes.

Borrowing costs, which includes interest calculated using the effective interest method and administration
fees, are expensed in the period in which they arise. Cosls that are not settled in the period in which they
arise are added to the camying amount of the borrowing. Borrowing costs are treated as an expense, as
assels constructed by Council are generally completed within one year and therefore are not considered to
be qualifying assets.

1.W Restoration provision

The provision is made for the cost of restoration in respect of refuse landfill sites and bio-solids composting
sites where il is probable Council will be liable, or required, to incur such a cost on the cessation of use of
these facilities. The provision is measured at the expected cost of the work required discounted to current
day values using an appropriate rate. Further details of Council's provision for the cost of restoration of
refuss |landfill sites and bio-solids composting sites can be found in Note 23

The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of
these sites, decontamination and monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites. The
calculation of this provislon requires assumptions such as application of environmental legislation, site
closure dates, available technologles and engineering cost estimates. These uncertaintias may result in
future actual expenditure differing from amounts currenlly provided. Because of the long-term nature of the
[iability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred. The
provision recognised for these sites are reviewed at least annually and updated on the facts and
circumstances available at the time.

The pravision is measured at the expected cost of the work required discounted to present value. Changes
in the provision not arising from the passing of time are trealed as an adjustment to the provision and
associated assel. Once the related assel has reached the end of its useful life, all subsequent changes in
the liability are recognised in profit and loss.

Changes to the provision resulting from the passing of ime (the unwinding of the discounl) are treated as a
finance cosl.

1.X  Infrastructure offsets

Infrastructure offsets represant a liability that is recognised when infrastructure has been contributed to
Council by a developer in lieu of paying infrastructure charges. Terms and conditions sumounding the
delivery of the contributed infrastructure and the realisation of the offset are set out in "Infrastructure
Agreements” that the Council and the developer(s) enter inlo. The offset or liability arises when the value aof
the contributed infrastructure is greater than what the developer would have paid in infrastructure charges to
Council. The offsetiiability is recognised when the contribuled assel is accepled as "on maintenance” (whan
Council accepts ownership of the asset) by Council. Once the offset is crealed the developer is entitied o be
paid the offset owing in cash or can use it lo offset any infrastruciure charges for future developments that
{he developer may underake.
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Moreton Bay™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1Y

1.Z

1.AB

1.AC

Aszel revaluation surplus

The assel revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in the value of property, plant and
equipment that do not result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of
classes of non-current assets sinca their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus,

Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets. Where a class of assets is
decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset revaluation
surplus in respect of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense. When an asset is disposed of, the
amaunt in the surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus and not transferred
to retained surplus.

Wational competition policy

Council has reviewed its activities to identify its business activities, Details of these activilies are disclosed in
Nofle 32.

Rounding and comparatives

Amounts included in the financial statements have been rounded 1o the nearest 51,000,

Comparative information has been reclassified where necessary 1o be cansisten! with disclesures in the
current reporting pericd. The resulting reclassifications have had no effect on the current year or prior year
net community assets.

Trust funds held for outside parties

Funds held in the trust account on behall of oulside parties include those funads from the sale of land for
arrears in rates, deposits for the contracted sale of iand, security deposits ledged to guarantee performance
and unclaimed monies paid into the trust account by Council. Council performs only a custodian rale in
respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not
considered revenue nor brought to account in the financial statements.

The monies are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements for information purpeses only in Note 29,
Taxation

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempl from Commaonwealth taxation except for Fringe
Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). The net amount of GST recoverable from the
Awstralian Taxation Office (ATO) or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset ar liability respectively,

Council has a participating interest in the Northern SEQ Distributor-Retailer Authority (trading as Unitywaler)
governed by a Paricipation Agreement. The Authority is subject to the Local Governmen! Tax Equivalents
Regime (LGTER). Under the LGTER the Authority is required to make income tax equivalent payments to
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Participation Agreement. Income tax eqguivalent
paymenls from the Authority are recognised as revenue when the significant risks and rewards related to the
corresponding assels have been transferred to Council,

18
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Moreton Bay™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

= o —

2 Analysis of Results by Function
(a) Components of Council Functions
The activities relating to Council's components reported in Note 2(b) below are as follows,

Engineering, Construction & Maintenance

Engineering, Construction and Maintenance is responsible for the maintenance of Council buildings and
public facilities, as well as identifying, planning and delivering infrastructure to suppor the community and
ensure a high standard of infrastruciure within the Moreton Bay Region.

Community & Environmental Services

Community and Environmental Services is responsible for providing well managed and maintained
community facilities, ensuring compliance with the local laws of Council, monitoring, reporting and engaging
with the community to advance the prolection and management of the natural environment.

Govarnance

The role of the Governance section is to ensure open and accountable govemance of the region and
comprises the Councillors, Chief Executive Officer, Internal Audit, legal, financial management,
organisational and people development, information technology support, communications and other related
support functions.

Strategic Planning & Development

Strategic Planning and Developmeni Is responsible for maintaining a strategic plan of Council's longer term
functions and responsibilities In relaticn to land use planning, planning scheme development, development
assessment and engineering.

Economic Development & Commercial Services

The role of Economic Development and Commercial Services Is to support increased levels of employment
within the region, foster a dynamic and prosperous business environment, manage Council's property
portiolic, acquire and dispose of strategic land holdings, stimulale economic activity and provide suslainable
and cosi-effective solid wasle management services fo the community.
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Moreton Bay™
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015
2015 2014
Note £'000 §'000
3 Rates and utility charges
General rates 206,105 195,429
Cleansing charges 36,547 35,708
Other special lovies, rates and charges 11,631 11.557
254,283 242,694
Less: Pensioner and other rebates (3,762) {3,721)
250,521 238,973
4 Fees and charges
Administration 6,781 6,793
Communily facilities 4,362 5,049
Developmant services 17,397 14,011
¥Wasia managament 3,751 3,408
Animal control 3,125 2,830
Other fees 203 200
35,519 32,39
5 Grants, subsidies and contributions
(a) Operating
Government grants and subsidies 20,675 14,388
Other grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 1,504 4,419
22,179 18,507
{b) Capital
Government grants and subsidies 14,329 22,284
Infrastructura cash contributions 30,538 19,835
Contributed assets 49,719 39,070
Assets not previously recognised 3918
Dther capital Income 2,311 234
100,817 81,523
21
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Mareton Bay™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
MNote $'000 $'000
Conditlons over contributions
Contributions and grants which were recognised as revenues
during the reparting period, and which were oblained on the
candition that they be expended in a manner specified by the
contributor, but had not been expended at the reparting date:
Grants 2,153 1,558
2,153 1,559
Contributions and granis which were recognised as revenues in a
previous reporiing period, and were expended during the current
reporting period in accordance with Council's obligations:
Grants 1,559 3,540
1,559 3,540
interest revenue
Interest from financial institutions B,129 8,329
Interest from Unitywater 37,238 36,940
Interest from overdue rates and utility charges 874 1.018
46,341 46,287
Dther revenue
Tax equivalent 14,202 12,978
Other income 7,233 5,324
21,435 18,302
Capital income
Revaluation up of investment property 16 3,030 268
Estimation adjustment to refuse landfill sites 18 .
Discount rate adjustrment to refuse landfill sites 3 -
Unused amount reversal to refuse landfill sites 23 40 -
Estimation adjustment lo Bio-solids composting site 23 169 70
Discount rate adjustment to Bio-solids composting site 23 5
Unused amount reversal lo Bio-solids composting site 23 1" 15
Total capital ncome 3,276 353
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~ QA0
certified statements



-

Moreton Bag ™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2018 2014
Mote $'000 $000
8 Employee benefits
Total staff wages and salaries 103,038 102,203
Annual, sick, long service leave and other ontitlemenis 12,644 12,643
Superannuation 21 12,672 12,501
128,354 127,437
Other employee related expenses 5,230 5,576
133,584 133,013
Less: Capitalised employee expenses (2,313) (8,533)
124,271 123,480
2015 2014
Mo. MNo.
Tofal full ime equivalent employees 1,505 1,504
1,505 1,504
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
10 Materials and services

Contractors 73,657 69,356
LHilites 19,908 18,088
Materials 8,785 B.991
Other materials and services 5,824 7,151
[nfermation technology hardware/software 5215 4,944
Fuel 3,325 4014
Insurance premiums 3,102 3.029
Labour hire services 2,304 2,588
Legal costs 2,401 TIr
Danations, grants and contributions 2,027 2,183
Printing, postage and stationery 1,739 1,715
Councillors’ remuneration 1,728 1,654
Expensed capital 1,671 1,323
Commissions and contributions 1,583 1.762
Cleaning 1,388 1,151
Investment property expenses {property generating Income) 226 any

Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of
Quesnsiand 225 220
Other audit assurance services performed 2 2

134,821 130,755

Councillor remunaration represents regular payments and other
allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties.
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Moreton Bng“-'
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015
2015 2014
MNote 5000 £'000
11  Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of non-current assols
Land improvements 4,460 4,143
Buildings 12,158 11,419
Park equipment 4,303 3,825
Plant and equipment 7,945 7688
Transpart infrastruciure 34,39 43,946
Stormwater infrastructure 15,549 11,068
Waterways and canals 375 277
18 75,182 B2,366
Amortisation of intangtble assets
Software 20 547 a7
Total depreciation and amartisation 79,725 B2, 783
12 Finance cosis
Finance cost on loans 23,233 23,197
Other 1,312 1,331
24,545 24,588
13 Capital expenses
Book valus of properly, plant and equipmenl disposed of 41,083 27.270
Less: Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment (24,712} (4.234)
Estimation adjustment to refuse landfill sites - 86
Discount rate adjustment to refuse landfill sites - T
Discount rate adjustmeant to Blo-solids composting site - 63
Revaluation down of property, plant and equipment 18 346,965 .
Infrastructure offsets recognised 23 12,851 22 885
Infrastructure offsets extinguished 23 (10,379} {15,813
Total capital expenses 365,908 30,534
24
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Moreton Bay™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

14

15

2015 2014
MNote $'000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 4,052 7,082
Deposits at call 186,935 82,588
Term deposils 60,400 115,400
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 252,287 205,080
Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date
relate to the following cash assels:
Unspant government grants and subsidies 2,153 1,558
Internally imposed expenditure resirictions at the reporting date:
Unspent infrastructure contributions 102,958 B5,838
Total unspent restricted cash 105,111 97,105
Trade and other receivables
Current
Rates and utiiity charges 6,720 7117
Lozans to community organisations 87 4
Loans to Unitywater 1.227 4,704
Accrued recaivable from Unitywater 28,908 31,314
Other debtors 4,283 3437
GST recoverable 2,665 3,175
Prepayments 4,708 5,033
48,598 54,784
Less: Allowance for impaired debis {341) (208)
48,257 54,578
Non-current
Loans to community organisations 463 431
Loans to Unitywater . 1,227
Subordinated debt receivable from Unitywater B77,025 877,025
Waorks receivable 44,238 17,156
721,726 685,830

Interest is charged on oulstanding rates at a rate of 11% per
annum. No interest is charged on other debtors. There is no
concentration of credit risk for rates and ullity charges, fees and
other debtors receivable.

Loans have been made to Unitywater for working capital
purposes, Interest is charged at a fived rate of 6.7864% per
annum, The credil risk on these loans is considerad low,

The subordinatad debt recelvable from Unitywater is set ata
fixed interast rate of 5.47%. The credit risk on thase loans is
considered low.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

18

Movement in accumulated impairment losses (other deblors) is
as follows:

Opening balance at beginning of financial year

Impairment debts writtan off during the year

Additional impairments recognised during the year
Impairments recovered during the year

Impairments reverscd during the year

Closing balance at end of financial year

Investment property

Fair value at beginning of financial year

Additions from subsequent expenditure recognised
Net gain or {losses) from fair value adjustments
Disposzal

2015 2014
Mote $'000 S'000
206 9
(4) (11}
149 208
(2) :
st
206
45,310 45,721
217 321
3,030 268
(7,202) :
42,355 45,310

Fair value at end of financial year

Investment property comprises:

- commercial property which is rented out
- land which is held for fulure development or an undetermined
future use.

Investment property does not include residential properies,
swimming pools, aerodrome hangers and caravan parks.

All investment property was valued at fair value by Australis
Assel Advisery Group, an independent professionally qualified
valuation firm, as at 30 June 2015, Fair value was determined by
reference o market based evidence including observable
historical sales data in the relevan! market for properties of
gimilar nature and specification.

Expenses in respact of investment property are shown in Mote
0.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015
17 Invastment In associate
Detais of the associate is as Tollow.
Name of the associate Principal activity Proportion of parficipation
Y
Unitywaler Water and sewerage sarvices 58.2382

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate is set oul below.

2015 2014
§'000 5000
Total assels 3,342,906 3,268,130
Total habities {1,755,521) {1,755.921)
Nel assels 1,587,385 1,512,209
Shara of net assets of associate 924,461 BED B8
Telal revenue 624,673 550,483
Total profit for the year 120,302 84,466
Shazre cf profit of assoclate 70,0682 48.192
Council investmeant in the associate comprises of;
Partic’pation rights 932,057 BEE,277
Detals of movements in parlicipation rights:
Opering Balance BEB2TT BEF 200
Share of profit of associate 70,062 48,192
Less share of dividends recaived and accrued (26,282) (28,115}
Closing kalance at end of year 832,057 B8R 27T
Recaonciliation of the participation rights io the share of net assels:
Closing value of participation nights 932,057 888277
Less share of net assels (824,461) (BB0.E81)
Share of loss of associate for the year ended 2008/10 7,596 7,586
Share of loss of asscciate comprises.
Total loss for the year ended 200910 13,043
Propertion of parlicipation interast 58.2382%
Share of loss of associale for the year ended 200210 7 596

The vadation betwean the value of padicipation rights and the share of net assals occurred tecause Unitywater incumed
lossas during 2009/10 pricr to the commancement of the Councll's panicipation in Unitywater which began on 1 July 2010,

During 2014115 Unilywater identified 3 prior period amor in their financial stalements thal related Lo the amount of Income tax
squivalant expense recorded in each Minancial year since 1 Ju'y 2010.

As Unitywaler pay a percentege of income tax equivalence to Council, this prior period error consequeanthy alters the amount of
incoma tax equivalence revenua that Council has recorded. As a resull Coungll has overstated income tax eguivalance
revenue in the amount of 34.4 milllion since 1 July 2010 and consequently oversiated the vaive of its partrsipation nights in
Unitywatler by the sama amounl.

Consaguently to cormectly reflect the impacts of this prior periad emor, Council has adjusted the 201314 comparative emounts
in the Statement of Comprehensive income and Statement of Financial Pasition
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Property, plant and squipmant

30 June 2015

Buesis of measurnmani

Assol Values
Ogpening oross valuo as al 1 July 2014
Aadditions

Transfers befwesn aasel classes

Contribuicd assets

Disposms

Assats not proviously recognised{darecopnised)
Revaluation adustment lo nesel revaluation surphes
Revalustion adgustment (o capital expense
Transhers fram work i progress

Cloging gross valuo as al 30 June 2015

Accumiulated depreciation and kmpaiement
Dpaning badance as al 1 July 2014

Depreciation provided in perod
Transhers betwoan assel dasses
Dwpreciation on disposals

Agsets nol proviously recognisedderecognised)
Revalualion adjustmend bo assel revaluslion SUmHus
Rawaluation adjustmend to capital expenss
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2015

Total written down value as al 30 Juna 2015
Range of esbmatad useful B in years

30 June 2015

Basis of measurement

Assot Values

Opening gross vihes 68 8l 1 July 2014
Addithons

Transfers botwoen assol casses

Contributed assets

Disposals

Asgets not previcusly recognised/| derecognised)
Revalualion agjustment o sasel revaluation Sumnlus
Revaluation sdjustment bo capital expense
Transfers from work in progress

Closing gross value as at 30 June 2015

Accomulated deprociation and imparmant
Opening balance as a1 * July 2014

Dapreciaton provided n pericd

Transiers bebweon assol dasses

Dupraci slion on dEspass

Agsets nol previously recognised | derecognised)
Ravalustion adjustmont o assel revalation sumius
Ravaiuaton adjusiment to capilil capense
Accumulated dopeociation as at 30 June 2015

Total written down value as al 30 Juna 2015
fange of esimated useful U in years

Addifions comprises:

Rarawals

Tetal modithons

Land Park Plant and Tranapor
Mote e imgravements Eninn Equipmaont Equipmant Infrastructure |
Fair Valua Cosi Fnir Value Cost Cinsi Fair Valus
5000 5000 500 5000 $000 000
473,100 108,763 412 459 96,126 82,960 2,718,535
. ] x & 4 a
- [1.352 ] {1.660) [LA] 1082
25/ 148 - 1,087 58 27 561
{15,643) T642) 13,293) 1) {6,281 0,
F] p - 108 . {5,764}
24 n 2 m . {302 550
13 : " - - | {461 320
FREL 5.529 45550 8754 11,628 7817
-l-ﬁ]aﬂﬂ 112247 E!ES 104,194 88,292 2035 BE‘II
al 13,827 154,054 31,9681 37,080 676,958
11 - 4,450 12,158] 430 7.545 34,391
- [#03} - 1063 45] 1,511
1220} 11,4!nr| {59} 13,251 13,145)
% & ra i - [
24 p . . = 75,001
13 . E 4 E _- 114,353
- 37,664, T4, T18] 15142 41,726 524,158
453,600 74,563 280,147 6O.052] 56,566 1,512,665
% 3-400 5.108 5. 110 2. 110 1-140
Stasrmw | wate d| Cubtural ane Wark |
AlaF Ateradys A an L]
Moke Infrastracture Canals Hevitape Prograss —
Fair Valun Fair ¥alun Fair Valus Cosi
5000 §'000 $'000 £00 ¥oon
1,042,777 216,650 2,670 82,258 5,267,294
= = L 152,145 1621
5 [23) - : .
20,841 - - 49,719
[4.723) i) . - (44,611
13,3446 = - - B,
24 - - - - (302,550)
13 - - - =i (461,328
15,370 4,517 E [196.771]] {27,550}
1,087,647 221474 2,670 47,532 4629, 415)
216,130! B,524 2} 1,168,538
n 15.548] T8 79,182
-1 5 .
1554 3 (10,730
[2,035) + 2,171
24 - - 75,001}
13 . " 1174,363]
220,080 B.900 1,050.399
858 527 212,574 2610 47,632 570,016
20 - 100 9. 100 E » i‘ﬁ-!
5
£1,652 564
100,452,276
152,145 240
- - OAO
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Moreton Bay
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endoed 30 June 2015
Land Plast amd Tramaporl
30 June 2014 Holo Land - . Baidings Park Equiprmant | E ok i
Basis of mazsnemant Fair Vake GI:L.I Fai Valun Cosl (= Faer Valuo
Asnel Valoes 000 Fo00 SU00 000 §O00 §000
Cpaning gross value 28 811 July 2013 018 103,504, 3STETD 81,342 [T 2,642 459 |
Addiions - - - . - .
Tiansiers between asssl classes [P [iA7) [Fh2) F7H = F 7]
Caontributed azsots . [1E] - 275 ] 14‘?_3_":1
[Fzpoeals 2589 [T Z.771] [1.058) [18.368) (23,853}
Revalmaton adjust 0 sl revaluplion supius 4 [5, 135) - 2 3 I
Transters from work in progreds FAES 170 15346 RFE-17]
Closing gross valus as a1 10 June 2014 a73,104 108,753 412459 i, 1 26 fi2 560 il
Accumaraied depreciation and impairmaent
Cowrilng balance as al 1 Jduly 2013 . 3,838 153.436] 28, 555 AT AT 541 807
Dhepsgciaton provided in penoa 11 : i, 147 11415 A8 7.£50 43945
Tranadforn between assel classes - (14E)| [B5) 11 3} ]
Dapracinfion on deposa’s . {2, 1) [ [Ta4] (13,078} (0,088
Aszsats not previously recognises . . B i T ’
Revaluation adiustment ‘o ssset revaluation swiplus B — - . = -
Accumillated depreclation as sl 18 June 2074 - %L?_J 164 154 31,961 3T.0%0 E?EE
Todal writhen down valus as ot 3 June 2074 | A3 100) T4I"J‘J-ﬁ| 248 405] E-C.’E.f 5-5,3_!73] T
Beormwstsr | Walsremys sad | Cuburad snd Werk in
Ad e 2014 Hote Infrasfruciure Canals Hartlags Progress Towl
Beais of measuremonl Fair Valus Fair Visus Fair Vg Comt
Ansel Valuos 5000 ST00 000 2000 000
Opening pross value as at 1 July 2043 1LMEE5 216241 I.EH fi2 053 5916 436
A vpns = = = 178318 178,319
Transters bobwesn assel clssey 1T . " v -
Conrituted assels 13,568 : 74 . 0Tl
Disposaly 11636} - L9110} | {52 8071
Azzats nol previously recognised ] . - . .
Rervaluation adustmant o dtse| rvaluabon sumphes 24 ~ [GE1) . - {6,331}
Tearglers fiom work |m progosss 10,554 0 - (140,114} (1T 351)
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2014 1£ﬁ.’-‘.ﬂ'? le_r&'d.'l 3__m ﬂ‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁ 5257 204
Accumulated depreciathon and mpairmant
Opening balance as at 1 Juy 2013 205,308 1,739 - 1,410,711
Deprocnson provaded o pariod 11 11,068 ari = A2 355
Transiers Dotwoon guso! classes - . - .
Depraciation on dsporals (244} . - (28, 051)
Assots nol prevously rocogaised - - - -]
Ravatuatics ady 180 ansal huation Surples = 1,502 -] - 'r.su‘l
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2014 16130 8526 . . 1,18
Todal iwvitten down vatue s a1 30 June 2014 1 Bt 647 208 17 2,671 522580 4068 70|
i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

18 Fair value measurements
(i) Recognised fair value measurementis
Council measures and recognisas the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis:

Bulldings
Cultural and Heritage
- Investment Property
- Land
- Stormwater Infrastructure
Transport Infrastruciure
Walterways and Canals

Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

Council has assets and liabilitiss which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in
other notes,

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The fair
value of borrowings disclosed in Note 22 is provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation and represents the
contractual undiscounted cazh flows at balance date (Level 2)

The carrying amounts of frade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair value due to
their short-lerm nature (Level 2},

In accordance with AASE 13 fair value measurements are categonised on the fellowing basis:

Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Lavel 1}
Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (Level 2}
Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liabiiity (Level 3)

The following table categorizes fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASB 13.
Council does nol have any assets or labilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as
level 1,

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techriques which maximise the use of obsarvable data,
where it is available and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significam inputs required to fair value an
asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the asset is included in level 3.

QAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

The table presents the Council's assets and liabilities measured and recognised at falr value at 30 June 2015,
Comparative information has not been provided as sliowed by the transitional provisions of AASBE 13 Fair Value
Maasurement .

At 30 June 2015 MNote Level 2 Leval 3 Total
(Sgnificant other (Significant
observable inputs) |unobservable inputs)
|Rm:urring fair value measurements £'000 £'000 $'000
|Buildings 18 - 280,147 280,147
Cultural and Herilage 18 - 2,670 2,670
Investment Property 16 39,920 2435 42,355
Land 18 266,911 196,689 463,600
Stormwater Infrastructure 18 - 850,527 859,527
Transport Infrastructure 18 - 1,512,665 1,512,665
Walerways and Canals 18 - 212,574 22574
306,831 3,066,707 3,373,538

(i} Valuation technigues used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations

Council has reviewed each valuation o ensure compliance with the requirements of AASE 13, No changes in
valuation lechniques were required as a result of this review.,

Specific valuation techniques used to value Council assets comprise:

Buildings (Level 3)

The fair value of buildings were determined by independent valuer AssetVal Ply Lid as al 30 June 2012,

Due to the specialised nature of Council buildings, the valuations have been determined using the Depreciated
Replacement Cost method of valuation, The cost approach is an accepted valuation methodology under AASE 13
and is deemed to be a Leval 3 input,

Cultural and Heritage (Level 3)

The fair value of Council's Cullural and Heritage asset class was independently revalued by Ross Searle Associates
as al 31 Decomber 2011.

Investment Property (Level 2 and 3)

Investment property fair values ware determined by independent valuer Australis Assel Advisory Group as at 30
June 2015 as disclosed in Note 16 - Investment Property.

For investment property classified as level 2, fair value has been determined using the income capitalisation
approach., The Income capitalisation method of valuation involves capitalising the estimated net income of the
property at an appropriate capitalisation rate (net yield) that has been delermined through the analysis of market
based sales evidence for properties of similar nature and specification.

For investment property classified at level 3, no aclive market exists and fair valua has been measured utilising the

cost approach.
~ QAO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Land (Level 2 and 3)

The fair value of land was determined by indepandent valuer AssetVal Pty Lid as at 30 June 2013.

For land classified as level 2, fair value has been derived by ulilising inputs such as price per square metre , which is
derived by assessing market based sales evidence of land in the relevant geographic location and of a comparable
land use andfor zoning.

For land classified at level 3 no active market exists and fair value has been measured utilising a discounted price
per square metre, The price per square metlre is based upon market based sales evidence and is discounted
because the land has specific characteristics or particular resirictions in use.

Stormwater infrastructure (Level 3)

The fair value of stormwater infrastructure was determinad by independent valuers Asset\Val Pty Lid as at 30 June
2012,

Due to the specialised nature of Council's stormwater infrastructure there is no active market for the assets. As
such, fair value has been determined using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method of valuation. The cost
approach is an accepled valuation methodology under AASB 13 and is deemed to be a Level 3 inpul

Transpori infrastructure (Leve: 3)

The fair value of ransport infrastructure was determined by independent valuers Cardno Pty Lid as at 31 December
2014,

Due to the specialised nature of Council's transport infrastructure there is no active market for the assets. As such,
fair value has been determined using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method of valuation. Tha cost approach is
an accepted valuation methodology under AASE 13 and is deemed to be a Level 3 input.

Waterways and Canals (Lawval 3)

The fair value of waterway and canal assets was determined by independent valuer AssetVal Pty Ltd as at 30 June
2014,

Dus to the specialised nature of Council's walerway and canal Infrastructure, the valuations have been determined
using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method of valuation. The cost approach is an accepted valuation
methodology under AASE 13 and is deamed 1o be a Level 3 input.

(liY) Changes in fair vaive measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Lavel 3)

The changes in level 3 assels with recurning falr value measurements are detailed in Note 18 {Property, Plant and
Equipment). There has been a transfer in the amount of $2.435 million for investment property from level 2 to level 3
as a result of the investment property revaluation during tha year,

{Iv} Valuation processes

Council's current palicy for the valuanon of progerty, plant and equipment and investment property (recurring fair

value measurements) is sat out in Mote 1.0 and Note 1.P respectively. Nan-recurring fair value measurements are
made &t the point of reclassification by a registered valuer,

3z
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015
2015 2014
Note £000 £000
20  Intangible assets
Software
Opening gross carmrying value 11,129 13,758
Additions through acquisitions 38 939
Disposals - (3,568)
Closing gross carrying value 11,167 11,129
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 7,082 10,618
Amortisation in the period 1 547 a7
Depreciation on disposals - (3,054)
Ciosing balance B,529 7,082
Net carrying value at end of financial year 2,638 3,147
Software has a finite life estimated between 5 to 10 vears.
Straight line amortisation has been used with no residual value,
Total intangible assets 2,638 3,147
21 Trade and other payables
Current
Trade creditors and accruals 33,338 43,074
Employee entitlements 11,072 10,895
44,410 53,969
Non-Current
Trade creditors and accruals 605 784
605 T84
22 Borrowings
Current
Loans - Queenstand Treasury Corporation 22,181 21,054
22,181 21,054
Noan-current
Loans - Queensiand Treasury Corporation 372,770 374,915
372,770 374,915

The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was
$454,239,608.72. This reprasenis the value of the debt if
Council repaid it as at 30 June 2015,

Mo assels have been pledged as security by the Council for
any labilities.

33
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
MNote 3000 §000
23  Provisions
Current
Long service leave 14,018 13,729
Bio-solids composting site rehabilitation 15 22
Refuse rastoration 1,024 77
15,058 14,522
Mon-current
Long service leave 3,142 3.3
Bio-solids composting site rehabilitation 3N 484
Refuse restoration 11,424 10,462
Infrastructure offsets 7,746 5174
22,623 189,451
Details of movements in pravisions:
Long service leave
Balance at beginning of financial year 17.060
Long service leave entittement arising 2,460
Lang service leave entitliement extinguished (881)
Long service leave enlitlement paid (1,478}
Balance at end of financial year 17161
Bio-sollds composting site rehabilitation
Batance at beginning of financial year 506
Amount incurred and charged against the provision {11}
Increase in provision due to unwinding of discount 16
Decrease in provision due to change in estimate a (18639)
Decrease in provision due o change in discount rate a (5)
Unused amounts reversed 8 11
Balance at end of financial year 326

This provision is the present value of the estimated post closure
monitoring cost of the bio-solids compositing site. The projected
cost is 315,000 for every year and expected to be completed in
2038

QAOD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
Note $'000 000
Refuse landfill sites restoration
Balance al beginning of financial year 11,233
Amount incurred and charged against the provision (176)
Increase In provision due to unwinding of discount 394
Increase in provision due to change in estimate 1,580
Decrease in provision due (o change in discount rate (543)
Unused amounts reversed B {40)
Balance at end of financial year 12,448
Council holds an Environmental Protection Agency licence to
operate a number of landfills. Council estimates and discounts
expected future costs to restore landfill cells to present valua at a
discount factor based on Commonwealth bond yields rates.
Past closure
monitoring
Landfill site Expected site closure year cost
completion
vear
Burya landfill site 2050 2065
Diakabin landfill site 2025 2040
Caboalture landiill site 2045 2080
Ningl landfill site closed 2027
Woodford landfill site closed 2027
Infrastructure offsets
Balance at beginning of financial year 5174
Increase in provision for offsets recognised 13 12,951
Decrease in provision due to offsels extinguished 13 (10,379}
Balance at end of financial year 7,746

Assel revaluation surplus

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows:
Balance at beginning of financial year 528,786 536,629

Net adjustment to non-current assets at end of period to reflact
change in current fair value:

Land . (5,730}
Transport infrastructure (227,549) .
Walerways and canals - (2,113
18 (227,549) (7,843)

Balance at end of financial year 301,237 528,786

~ QAO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

25

2015 2014
MNote $'000 $000
Asset revaluatlon surplus analysis
The clesing balance of the asset revaluation surplus comprises
the foliowing asset categories;
Land 51,247 51,247
Buildings 47,218 47,218
Transport infrastruciure . 227,549
Stormwater infrastructure 165,207 165,207
Waterways and canals 37,424 7424
Cultural and heritage 141 141
301,237 228, 786
Commitments for expanditure
Contractual commitments
Commitmants for capital expenditure
Contractual commitments at end of financial year but not
recognised in the financial statements are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment 27,208 18,596
27,209 18,596
These expenditures are due for payment:
Mot later than one year 27,209 18,596
27,209 18,506
Commitments for operating expenditure
Contractual commitments al end of financial year but not
recognised in the financial statements are as follows:
Waste removal and recycling services 49,885 70,334
Dutzourced management of facilities of ather sarvices 3,874 2,860
IT equipment and software licences - 1,347
Grounds and equipment mainienance 18,040 5,492
Maintenance of infrastructure 431 2,500
Total contractual commitments at reporting date 72,230 82,633
These expenditures are due for payment:
Mot later than one year 28,168 25813
One to five years 44,062 56,337
Muore than five years . 483
72,230 B2 633

a6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Contingent liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

Legal claims

Council is subject to a number of compensation claims with regards to the compulsory acquisition of land.
Information In respect of individual claims has not been disclosed in accordance with AASE137 "Provisions,
Caonlingent Liabilifies and Contingent Assels” on the basis that Council considers such disclosures would
sarniously prejudice the outcome of the claims. In total the claims amount to approxmately $19 million

(2014: approximately $22m).
Infrastructure offsets

Council enters info certain infrastructure agreements with developers where specific infrastructure is to be
provided (contributed) to Council in lieu of charging infrastructure charges. Where the value of the
infrastructure provided exceeds the value of the infrastructure charges forgane an offsel may arise. The
offset is only recognised once Council has recelved the infrastructure as "on maintenance” and lakes
ownership.

Where the infrastructure is yet o be recognised as "on maintenance” there is no certainty that the offset will
eveniuate and a contingent liability is recognised. In total the potential offsets amount to approximately $11
million,

Local Sovernment Mutual

Council is a member of the local government mulual liability seff-insurance pool, LGM Queensiand. In the
event of the pool being wound up or it is unable to meet ils debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules
provide that any accumulated deficlt will be met by the individual pool members in the same proportion as
their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to any year that a deficit arises.

As at 30 June 2014 the financial statements of LGM Queensland reported a members' equily balance of
526,013,447,

Local Government Workcare

Council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensalion self-insurance scheme,
Local Government Warkcare, Under this scheme Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank
guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self insurance licence be cancelled and there
was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only the Queensiand Government's workers
compensation authority may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise.
Council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is $3,741 573,

Thers ware no other material adjusting events after the balance date.

ar
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Fxi

Superannuation

Councll contributes o the Local Governmenl Superannuation Scheme ((¥'d) {the schema). The schame is a Multi-employear
Flan as defined in the AASB11% Employee Benefits . The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of
the scheme, advised thal the iocal government superannualion scheme was a complying superannualion scheme for the
purposa of the Commonwealin Superannuation Indusiry (Supervision) legisiation.

The scheme has three elements referred (o as:
The City Defined Benefits Fund {CDBF) which covers farmar members of the Cily Super Defined Benefils Fund

The Regiona! Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fund members warking for regional local
governments; and

The Accumulation Benefits Fund [ABF)

The ABF is a dafined contribution schema as defined in AASE 119, Council has no liability 1o or inlerest in the ABF alher than
the payment of the statutery contributions as required by tha Local Governmen! Act 2009

Council does nol have any employees who are members of the COBF ard, therafore, is not exposed lo the obbgations, assels
or costs associated with this fund.,

The Regional DBF is a defined benafil plan as definad in AASB112. The Council is nat able lo account for ine Regional DBF as
a defined panefit pian in accordance with AASB 119 because the scheme is unable 1o accoun! to the Council for its
propartionate shara of tha defined benefif obligation, plan aszels and costs, Tha funding policy adopted in respect of the
Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits aceruing 1o members and beneficiarias are fully flunded as they fali due.

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the schemea's trustee can vary the rate of contributions fram relevant local
government employers subject to advice from (ha scheme's actuary. As at the reporting dale, no changes had been madae 1o
prescribed employer contribulions whizh remain at 12% of employes assels and there are no known requirements o change
tha rate of contributions.

Any amount by which either lund is over or under funded would orly affect future benefits and contributiors o the Regional
DBF. and is not an assel or liability of the Council. Accardingly {hare is no recognition in the financial statements of any over or
Jnder funding of the schamea.

Az al tre reporting dale, the assets of the scheme are sufficient lo meal the vested berefits,

Thia most recent actuarial assessmant of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2012, The aciuary indicated that *the
Regional DBF is currentiy in a satisfactory but modest financial position and remains vulnesable to adverse shorl and meadium
term expencnce.,”

Following the previous acluarial assessment in 2009, councils were advised by the frusiee of the scheme, ‘ollowing advice from
the schame's acluary, that additional contributions may be ‘mpased in the future at a level necessary to protect the entitiements
of Regional DBF members. In the 2012 acluadal report he actuary fas recommended no change to the employer contribution
lavels a1 this lime.

Under the Local Government Act 2005 the frustee of the scheme kas the power (o levy addiional contributions on councils
which have emplcyeas in the DBF when the acluary advises such addiional contrbuiions are payable - normally whan the
assets of the DBF are insufficient to mee! mambers’ benafits,

There are currently 71 entilies coniributing 1o the Regional DBF pian and any changes in contribution rates would apely equally
toall 71 entities. Marelon Bay Regonal Council made 4,90% of the tota! contrbulions o the plan for the 2014-2015 financia!
year.

The nexl acluaral investigation wil be made as at 1 July 2015,

2015 2014
Mote $'000 000
The amourt of superanniation cortrbulions paid by Councll (o the scheme in
this perod for the benefl of employeess and cauncillors was;
] 12,572 12,581

a8
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Moreton Bay™

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 Juna 2015

Operating lease income

The minimum lease receipts are as follows:
Mot later than one year

Ona to five years

Later than five years

Trust funds

Trust funds held for outside parties
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yvet to be paid
out to or on behalf of those entities

Councll parforms only a custodial role in respect of these montes.
As these funds cannot be used by Council, they are not brought ta
account in these financial statemeants.

Recencillation of net result for the year to net cash inflow
from operating activities

MNet resull

Mon-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Revalualion adjustments
Change in future rehabilitation and restorafion costs
Change in infrastructure offsats
Share of profit of associate

Investing and development activities:
Met loss on disposal of non-current assets
Capital granis and contributions

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decreasel{increase) in receivables
Decreasef{increase Jin other operaling assels
{Decrease)increase In payahbles
(Dacrease) in provisions
{Dacrease) in ather liabilities

Met cash inflow from operating activities

2015 2014
Note $'000 $'000
4,328 5,520
12,315 16,559
8,948 16,574
25,591 J8,653
6,122 5,896
6,122 5,888
{168,765) 104,910
79,729 82,783
343,935 (268)
164 474
2,572 7,072
(70,062) (49,192)
356,338 40,869
16,371 23,036
(100,B17) _(81,523)
(B4,446) (58,487}
3,884 (225)
258 {174}
(9,736} 3810
(86) {2,155)
(227) {2.011)
{5,907) {755)
87,220 36.53:?_

~ QAO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

31 Financial instruments
Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk
= liguidity risk
- markal rizk
This note provides information (both qualitative and quantitative) 1o assist statement users evaluale the significance of

financial instruments on the Councdl's financial position and financial performance, induding the nature and extent of risks
and haw the Council manages these exposures.

Financial risx management

Councl is responsible for the establishment and aversight of the risk managemeant framewark, together with developing and
menitoring risk management policies.

The Council’s risk management policies are established 1o ideniity and analyse the risks faced, fo sel appropriate fimits and
controls and to monitor these risks and adherence against imits. The Coundl aims to manage valatility to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial peformance of the Council.

Council does not enter into derivalives,

Credit risk exposure

Credit risk is the rsk of financial loss if a countarparty to a financial instrument failz to meet its contractual obligations, These
obligations anse principally from the Council's investments and receivables from cusiomers.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ahility to meet payment obfigations. The
carrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum credit expasure,

Invastments in finangial instruments are required lo be made with Queansland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or financial
institutions in Australia, in ling with the requiremenis of the Slalulory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982

Mo collaterai is held as security relating to the financial assets held by Council.

40 ~ QAO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

The following table represents the maximum exposure lo credil risk based on the carrying amounts of fnancial assets at the
end of the mporting perod:

Note 2015 2014

Financial assets $'000 §000
Cash and cash equivalents 14 252,287 205,080
Recsivables - rates 15 6,720 7047
Receivables - other 758,896 738,473
1,017,003 950,670

Cash and cash equivalents
The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the QTC Cash Fund and QTC Working Capital Facility.

The QTC Cash Fund (s an assel managemeni portiolio that invests with a wide range of high credit rated counterpartias
Deposils with the QTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed. Working Capital Facility deposits have a duration of one day and
all imvestments are required to have a minimum credit rating of "BBB", therefora the fikefihood of the counterparty having
capacity to meel ils fimnancial commitmeants is strong,

Trade and ather receivablas
In the case of rale recalvables, the Council has the power to sell the property fo recover any defaulted amounts. In effect

this power prolects the Council against credit sk in the case of defaulls,

In ofher cases, the Council assesses the credil nisk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit
profection procedures 1o minimisa the risk.

By the nature of the Councils operations, there is a geographical concentration of risk in the Council's grea. However, the
region has a wide variety of industries. reducing the geographical risk.

The following represents an analysis of the age of Councif's financial assets that are either fully performing, past due or
impaired:

30-June-2015
Fully Past due Total
perdarming
Less than 30 30-60 days More than 60
days days
£000 £'000 $'000] £'000 $°000
Receivables 85,851 1,342 106 1,202 Bs,501
Less Impairmeni - - - (341) {341}
Mat Recelvables {gl!ﬂ 1,342 106 951 88,250
30-Juna-2014
Fully Pasgl dua Tatal
perloming
Less than 30 | 30-80 days | More than 60
days days
£'000 $'000| 5000 000 £'000
Recoivablas 67,090 &70 T2 733 68,565
Less Impairment - - - {206) (206}
Nel Raceivables 67,090 870 72 527 68,359

The above analysis does not include the non-current receivable of 5677.025 million (2014: 3677025 milkon), which
represents a fixed rale loan to Unitywaler, Rafer lo Note 15 for further information.

4 QA0
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 3¢ June 2015

Liguidity risk

Liquidity rigk i the risk thal the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Counril is exposed to liquidity risk through its normal course of business and threugh it's bormowings with QTC,
The feilywing table sets oul the liquidity fsk in relation to financial liabilties held by the Council. It represents the remaining

contractual cash flows (principal and interest) of financial liabilities at the end of the reparting period, exchuding the impact of
nedling agreements:

Oto 1 year 1 1o 5 years Owear 5 yoars Total Carrying
contraciual Amount
cash flows

$'000 $000 $'000] §'000 $'000

2015
Trade and other payables 33,565 678 - 34,243 33,943
Loans - QTC 45 417 183,405 333,395 562,217 384,951
78,882 184,083] 333,395 596 460 428,694

2014
Trade and other payablas 43,130 1,131 s 44,261 43858
Loans - QTC 44,248 176,368 354,655 575,260| 385,969
87,376 177,499 354,655 §18,530] 439,827

The oulfiows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earfier and are nol expected to be for significantly
diffarent amounts than indicated in the table.

Council does not have access to a fixed overdrafl tacility.
Market rishk

tdarket risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as inlerest rates, will affect the Councdils income or the valua of its
holdings of financial instruments.

intevast rate nsk
Council is exposed lo intarest rate risk through investments and borrowings with QTC and other financial institutions.

The Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through QTC so that interest rate risk exposura
can be minimisad.

42 QAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fer the year ended 30 June 2015

Sanzilhvity
Sensitivity to inleresl rate movemants is shown for vanable financial assets and liabilites based on the carmying amount at
reparting data.

The fallowing interast rate sansitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to
be 1%) would have on the profit and equily, based on the carmrying values at the end of the reporting period. The calculation
assumes that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period.

Mat carrying Profitloss Equity
AL 1% increase 1% decrease| 1% increase 1% decrease
£'000 5000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2015
QTC cash fund - 6a9 (B89) 689 (\Wﬂ]l
Other investmants - 668 (658} 668 __(e68)
Mal total - 1,367 {1,367} 1,367 H@‘
2014
QTC cash fund - 555 (555) 555 (555)
Other investmenis - 361 (361) 381 (361}
Mel lolal - a16 {816) 916 (216}

In relation ‘o the QTC loans hald by the Council, the following has been applied:

QTC Generic Debl Pocl - the generic debl pool products approxdmats a fixed rate loan, There is a negligible impact on
inlerest sensitivity from changes in interest rates for generic debl pool bomowings.

Fair value

The fair value of rade and other recelvables and payables is assumed lo approximate the value of the original transaction,
less any allowance for impairment.

The fair value of bormowings with QTC is based on the markel value of debl outstanding. The market value of a debt
obligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required
to be repaid If this was o occur at balance dale. The market value of debl is provided by OTC and is disclosed in Note 22

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of dabt and interast rate dsk, to limit the impact of markat value

movements to clients’ cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amorised cost using the
effective inlerest method.

4 QAO
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS
For the year ended 30 Juna 2015

a2

33

Mationai competition poficy

Business activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied
Council applies the competitive code of conduct to the following actvity:
Waste Function

This requires the application of full cost pricing, identifying the cost of community service obligations (C50) and eliminating
the advantages and disadvanages of public ownership within that activity,

The following activity statements are for activities subject io the competitive code of conduct:

Type 2
Wasle
Function
2015
Revenue $'000
Revenue for services provided to Council 2,324
Revenue for sendices provided to external cliegnts 45,327
Coemmunity service abligations a41
48,592
Expenditure 38671
Surplusi{deticiency) 8 821

Community Service Obligations:

The CS0 value is defermined by Councll and represents an activity's costis) which would not be incurred if the actiwties
primary objective wera o make a profit. Council provides funding from general revenue to the business activity 1o cover the
cost of providing non-commercial community services or costs deemed to be CSO's by Council.

Activities and CS0O Description 2015
$°000

Waste

Pensioner Discounts 568

Litter Managament 348

Clean Up Australia 25

Evenis subseguent to balance date
There were ng malerial adjusting events after the balance date.

On July 20, 2015 Council purchased a strategic parcel of land for approximatety £53.9 milion. The purchass of the site is the
nexl slep in investigaling the feasibility of eslablishing a University and Community Precinct within the Moreton Bay Region.
With the population of the Morefon Bay Region expected to grow by mare than 403 in the next 20 years the land purchase is
seen as a strong vision to create an economic hub for the future that will generate employmeant and provide ongoing
economic prosperity for the region.
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MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed reqguirements.

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation

2012 for the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material
respecls; and

{ii} the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages 1 fo 44, present a true and fair view,
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial
year and financial position at the end of the year,

Date: / = | (C | ISrS Date: ("S‘: faf .:.24:?/5"
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
To the Mayor of Moreton Bay Regional Council

Report on the Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Moreton Bay Regional Council, which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

armor.
Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the Audifor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal contral,
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities

and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant.

Opinion

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009 -

(a) | have received all the information and explanations which | have required; and
(b)  inmy opinion -

(i) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(if) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Moreton Bay
Regional Council for the financial year 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 and of the
financial posilion as at the end of that year.

Other Matters - Elsctronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the
financial statements. if users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented
information.

QUEENSLANG

7 10CT 2015
~Aupir oFFICE
P J FLEMMING FCPA Queensland Audit Office
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane
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CURRENT-YEAR FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2015

o

Moreton Bay™

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Council's performance at 30 June 2015 agalnst key financlal ratios and targets;

|revenue {exciuding capital tems)

Actual Target

How the measure is calculated

Operating surplus ratio MNet result (excluding capital 20.4% between 0% and
itemns) divided by total operating 10%
revenue (excluding capital items)

Asszat sustainability ratio Capital expenditure on the 65.2% greater than 90%
replacement of assets (renewals)
divided by depreciation expense,

Ne: financlal liabilities ratio Total liabilities less current 38.8% not greater than
assets divided by total operating B0%

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

The current year inanclal sustainabllity statement Is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the
requiremeants of the Local Governmenf Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013,
The amounts used o calculate the three reporled measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the
Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015.

~ QAOD
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CERTIFICATE OF ACCURACY
For the year ended 30 June 2015

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial
susiainability statement has been accurately calculated.

A 7 B

Cr Mike Charlton Mr D. man
Acting Mayor Chief utive Officer
Date: /S 1/ @ | TS Date: /f; = -}?/S/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Moreton Bay Regional Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

| have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a
special purpose financial report of Moreton Bay Regional Council for the year ended 30 June
2015, comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the Mayor
and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the cumrent-year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Govemment Regulation 2012.
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability
statement based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the
Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian
Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's intemal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the statement.

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately
calculated based on the Council's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does
not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios,
nor on the Council's future sustainability.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.



Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector
entities and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents
and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant.

Opinion

In accordance with 5.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current-year financial sustainability statement of Moretcn Bay Regional
Council, for the year ended 30 June 2015, has been accurately calculated.

Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of
accounting. The current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guidsline 2013 for the purpose
of fuffiling the Council's reporting responsibilities under the Local Government
Regulation 2012, As a result, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose.

Cther Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Statement

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpase financial report should note
that audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented
electronically and does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperinked to
or from the financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concemed with the
inherent risks arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to
the printed copy of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this
electroniczlly presented information.

SUEENSLANS
2 1 0CT 2015
AUpiT oFfFICES

P J FLEMMING FCPA Queensland Audit Office
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane
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Moreton Bay™

CERTIFICATE OF ACCURACY
For the long-term financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2015

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long-term financial sustainability
staternent has been accurately calculated.

MMH Mr Da itzman
Acting Mayor Chief Exgcutive Officer

Date: /S | £O | Deops van. /5] 12 .;E?/(
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We've 9ot it all

(07) 3205 0555
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After hours (07) 3205 0555
Fax (07) 3205 0599
Email mbrc@moretonbay.qld.gov.au
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